
DRAFT 

 

Board of Selectmen Meeting Minutes  

DRAFT April 14, 2020 Page 1 of 8 

 1 

TOWN OF NORTHWOOD 2 

BOARD OF SELECTMEN 3 
 4 

Town of Northwood • 818 First NH Turnpike • Northwood, NH 03261 • (603) 942-5586 5 
 6 
 7 

Board of Selectmen Meeting Minutes 8 
April 14, 2020 9 

 10 
ROLL CALL: Chairman Hal Kreider, Vice-Chair Matt Frye, Selectwoman Beth Boudreau, 11 
Selectman Tim Colby, Selectman Jim Hadley 12 
 13 
ABSENT: None 14 
 15 
STAFF PRESENT: Town Administrator (TA) Heather Thibodeau and Municipal Administrative 16 
Assistant Lisa Lamarche 17 
 18 
6:02 P.M. Chairman Kreider opened the Northwood Board of Selectmen meeting via Zoom 19 
and led the Pledge of Allegiance 20 
 21 
As Chair of the Northwood Board of Selectmen, I find that due to the State of Emergency declared 22 
by the Governor as a result of the COVID-19 pandemic and in accordance with the Governor’s 23 
Emergency Order #12 pursuant to Executive Order 2020-04, this public body is authorized to 24 
meet electronically.  25 
Please note that there is no physical location to observe and listen contemporaneously to this 26 
meeting, which was authorized pursuant to the Governor’s Emergency Order.  However, in 27 
accordance with the Emergency Order, I am confirming that we are:  28 
a) Providing public access to the meeting by telephone, with additional access possibilities by 29 
video or other electronic means:  30 
We are utilizing Zoom platform for this electronic meeting.  All members of the Board of 31 
Selectmen have the ability to communicate contemporaneously during this meeting through this 32 
platform, and the public has access to contemporaneously listen and, if necessary, participate in 33 
this meeting through details located on our website and posted outside the Town Hall. 34 
Municipal Administrative Assistant, Lisa Lamarche, said to call the main number at (603) 942-35 
5586 and she will answer during the meeting if anyone is having trouble viewing the meeting. 36 
Chairman Kreider thanked Bob Young for the updates and keeping us informed.  He also 37 
thanked Police, Fire, and workers like the supermarket employees for helping during this 38 
time. 39 
 40 
CITIZEN’S FORUM: 41 
Chairman Kreider and Municipal Administrative Assistant, Lisa Lamarche directed citizen’s to the 42 
Northwood website at www.northwoodnh.org, and in the main section, below the email addresses 43 
is the information for submitting an email to citizensforum@town.northwood.nh.us. 44 
Selectman Matt Frye had a citizen’s forum from Fred Tobbe of Young’s Crossing: 45 
These are areas from 2019 regarding Mary Waldon Beach and Bennette Bridge Beach, 46 

http://www.northwoodnh.org/
mailto:citizensforum@town.northwood.nh.us


DRAFT 

 

Board of Selectmen Meeting Minutes  

DRAFT April 14, 2020 Page 2 of 8 

#1 Cars parked in beach parking area without resident sticker during the day and sometimes 1 
overnight. 2 
#2 Smoking and use of alcohol on the beach or parking areas when there were no lifeguards. 3 
#3 Bennette Bridge parking area - some evenings beer & alcohol drinking, beer cans, personal 4 
products items on beach/parking area and/or in porta potty. 5 
#4 Broken boards on one of two picnic tables at Bennette Bridge beach area. (Town 6 
Administrator and Recreation Director are aware of this) 7 
Recommend more police patrols during the day and nights: Memorial Day through Labor Day. 8 
Stop and Check for resident stickers.  Check if smoking/alcohol are being used.  Don't just do 9 
drive by, stop and check. 10 
Thank you. 11 
 12 
REGULAR BUSINESS: 13 
 14 
Minutes 15 
MOTION: “To approve the March 31, 2020 BOS meeting minutes.” 16 
 Motion:  T. Colby 17 
 Seconded:  M. Frye 18 

Discussion:  Selectman Hadley had one correction on page 2, line 2, should say 19 
Hadley not Colby. 20 

 Motion with amendments Passes: 5 – Yes, 0 – No   21 
 22 
Northwood NH Consent Agenda for April 14, 2020 23 
Payroll Manifest dated April 8, 2020 for $53,508.93 24 
Accounts Payable Manifests dated April 8, 2020: 25 
 Batch #13791 (1) for $117,992.55 + ACH Voucher for $400,000 26 
 Batch #13790 (2) for $52.00 (COVID-19 Expenditures) 27 
Purchase Order #107127 for $10,000 28 
 Company Name: Municipal Resources, Inc. / Consulting Services 29 
Finance Reports: 30 

Open Requisitions Report – none for this agenda 31 
Open Purchase Orders Reports – 2019 & 2020 32 
Budget vs. Actual YTD Expenditure Report – 1st meeting of every month 33 

MS 232 Report of Appropriations Actually Voted 34 
 35 

Approved by a vote of 5 – Yes, 0 – No on April 14, 2020 36 
 37 
_______________________________________________ Hal Kreider 38 
_______________________________________________ Matt Frye 39 
_______________________________________________ Beth Boudreau 40 
_______________________________________________ Jim Hadley 41 
_______________________________________________ Tim Colby 42 
 43 
MOTION: “To accept the Consent Manifest of April 14, 2020 as amended.” 44 

Motion:  M. Frye 45 
 Seconded:  T. Colby 46 

Discussion:  Selectman Hadley would like Finance Specialist, Katherine Davis to initial 47 
Timesheets until COVID is over.  Chairman Kreider doesn’t think the 48 
responsibility should be on Katherine.  T.A. Thibodeau said we’ll be discussing 49 
DocuSign later in the meeting which will help with the signing of timesheets. 50 

 Motion Passes: 5 – Yes, 0 – No 51 
 52 
 53 



DRAFT 

 

Board of Selectmen Meeting Minutes  

DRAFT April 14, 2020 Page 3 of 8 

OLD BUSINESS (from previous meetings): 1 
 2 
COVID-19 – Continuation of Operations 3 
Chairman Kreider said that if 1 or 2 BOS get sick then the rest of the board can still operate but 4 
if more than 2 are sick the board can’t meet.  Chairman Kreider said he thought the BOS raised 5 
the spending level for T.A. Thibodeau to $20,000.  Municipal Administrative Assistant, Lisa 6 
Lamarche said she doesn’t remember recording that in the minutes.  The BOS then said she 7 
could spend $20,000 for COVID, and she had to give reports at $5,000, $10,000, $15,000, and 8 
$20,000 levels of spending.  T.A. Thibodeau said she already has authority to $2,500, but the 9 
BOS raised it to $20,000.  T.A. Thibodeau said that her, Katherine, and Lisa will be having a 10 
meeting with the DocuSign people tomorrow to discuss what level the Town needs for it’s 11 
package.  Selectman Hadley asked if T.A. Thibodeau will be back in the office tomorrow.  T.A. 12 
Thibodeau said they’ll discuss that in non-public.   13 
 14 
Election Official Pay Adjustment: Status Report 15 
Katherine Davis said the BOS voted at the last meeting to raise the pay rate from $8 to $12 with 16 
retro back to January 1, 2020.  She said we received most Personnel Action Forms (PAFs) back 17 
and we completed all retro pay in the last payroll.  Lisa Lamarche said she has 1 election worker 18 
left that she just received her payroll paperwork and she’ll get paid in the next payroll.  She said 19 
Savannah mentioned 2 other election workers, but Lisa and Katherine don’t have any 20 
timesheets or payroll paperwork from them.  Katherine said we’ll pay them if they submit a 21 
timesheet and payroll paperwork.   22 
 23 
Committee Assignments/Appointments: 24 
Chairman Kreider said he thinks the select board representative for their committees can present 25 
findings/recommendations as they come from those committees.  He thinks we should start 26 
recruiting.   27 

a. Safety Facilities Strategy – Appoint Committee Members 28 
 29 
MOTION: “To appoint the following people as members of the Safety Facility Strategy 30 
Committee: Elaine St. Jean & Mark Moral as citizens, Ted Wilkinson, Paul Tudor, or Mark 31 
Moore from the Budget Committee with the BC deciding who their representative will be 32 
and the other 2 will be citizens on the committee, and Joe McCaffrey as the Planning Board 33 
representative.” 34 
 Motion: H. Kreider 35 
 Seconded: J. Hadley 36 
 Discussion: None 37 
 Motion Passes: 5 – Yes, 0 – No 38 
 39 

b. Default Budget and Impact of COVID-19 to Town Revenues and Expenses in 2020 40 
Chairman Kreider suggested the board delegate this to the Budget/Finance Committee.  The 41 
board agreed that it was okay to pass this to them.  Selectman Hadley said in regards to the 42 
default budget, the BOS can move money from one line to another as long as they keep $1 in 43 
that line. 44 
 45 

c. Formation of Energy Committee 46 
Selectman Hadley said that the state allowed municipalities to form non-binding energy 47 
committees called Local Energy Consortium Committees.   It’s a non-profit that provides energy 48 
action tool kits for example solar panels on town buildings.  Municipalities can purchase the 49 
power from whole sale so the rate would be cheaper.  He thinks the committee should consist of 50 
2-3 citizens, 1 BOS representative, and it should focus on 1-2 things.   51 
 52 



DRAFT 

 

Board of Selectmen Meeting Minutes  

DRAFT April 14, 2020 Page 4 of 8 

MOTION: “To create an Energy Committee consisting of 1 BOS representative and an 1 
alternate with 3 citizens.” 2 
 Motion: J. Hadley 3 
 Seconded: M. Frye 4 
 Discussion: Chairman Kreider said that he thinks it’s a great idea but he thinks we’re 5 

already overwhelmed with other things going on.  Selectman Hadley said he 6 
would be the BOS representative for this because he feels it’s very important.  7 
Selectman Frye said he would like to table this until there is a written charter.  8 
Selectman Hadley said he sent an email but he didn’t think it went out to all the 9 
BOS.  Chairman Kreider said to send an email with the charter and information 10 
for this committee to T.A. Thibodeau.  T.A. Thibodeau said she has staff 11 
members that are interested in joining this committee. 12 

 J. Hadley and M. Frye withdrew their motions. 13 
 14 
Release of 2017 & 2018 Management Letter from auditors 15 
Chairman Kreider said the BOS voted at the last meeting to release the audit reports but they 16 
didn’t vote on releasing the management letters.   17 
 18 
MOTION: “To release the 2017 & 2018 Management Letters from auditors.” 19 
 Motion: H. Kreider 20 
 Seconded: T. Colby 21 
 Discussion: Selectman Frye asked if it’s common practice to release the management 22 

letters.  Chairman Kreider said some towns do and some don’t, but it’s mostly 23 
just for the BOS.  He said Northwood’s history is both yes and no for years past.  24 
Katherine Davis said that thanks to Greg and Glen’s help we should be able to 25 
finish the financial statements reconciliation for 2019.  She said she can provide 26 
reports now, but they won’t be fully reconciled until mid-May.  T.A. Thibodeau 27 
said the auditors are scheduled for the 3rd week in June.  Katherine Davis said 28 
we are still on track for the auditors. 29 

 Motion Passes: 4 – Yes, 1 – No (Matt Frye) 30 
 31 
Bow Lake Bridge Work: Status Report 32 
T.A. Thibodeau said her and Chris Brown are working on this.  They have one easement left 33 
due to the resident’s moving.  They’re hoping to hear about this one by Thursday.  The project is 34 
planned for Columbus Day weekend.  Chairman Kreider would like dates/status/schedule of 35 
events for the next BOS meeting.  T.A. Thibodeau said it takes 22 weeks to build a certain piece 36 
for the bridge and they were hoping for July but the company said they needed more time.  She 37 
said it’s McFarland/Johnson that are doing the bridge.  Selectman Colby questioned if it’s 38 
already built and sitting somewhere.  Selectwoman Boudreau said she thinks Selectman Colby 39 
is thinking about the culvert from Ridge Road.  Selectman Colby said he’s worried we might lose 40 
the money from the grant if it’s not completed in time.  T.A. Thibodeau said the holdup has been 41 
due to getting the easements back.  Selectman Hadley would like T.A. Thibodeau to ask about 42 
a no-cost extension given COVID-19 extenuating circumstances. 43 
 44 
NEW BUSINESS: 45 
 46 
Appointment of Health Officer 47 
T.A. Thibodeau said we have one employee interested in the Health Officer position.   48 
MOTION: “To appoint Jacqueline Lambert as the Health Officer.” 49 
 Motion: M. Frye 50 
 Seconded: B. Boudreau 51 
 Discussion: Selectman Hadley asked if she’s the acting Health Officer.  T.A. 52 



DRAFT 

 

Board of Selectmen Meeting Minutes  

DRAFT April 14, 2020 Page 5 of 8 

Thibodeau said yes.  The BOS decided to discuss this in a non-public session 1 
later. 2 

M. Frye and B. Boudreau withdrew their motions. 3 
 4 
Paving RFPs: Status 5 
Chris Brown, the Public Works Foreman, said the three roads are Ridge Road, Tasker Hill 6 
Road, and Harvey Lake Road.  He said those RFPs in the BOS packets are samples but he 7 
said he’s doing new RFPs and will send them to Lisa by Friday.  Selectwoman Boudreau asked 8 
if it’s too late to ask for bids.  Chris Brown said it’s not and that he knows vendors are 3-4 9 
months out for work right now.  He said the total budget is around $400,000 for all 3 roads.  10 
Selectwoman Boudreau said not to forget include the Library parking lot paving.   11 
 12 
Grading RFPs: Status 13 
Chris Brown said normally the Town goes out to bid for grading, but he has a company that can 14 
do it for under $2,500 which T.A. Thibodeau can approve, so he doesn’t need to bid.  He’s using 15 
Red Messenger and he’s only estimating between $900-$1,500.  Chairman Kreider would like a 16 
P.O. out for this.  Selectwoman Boudreau asked if we’re doing Old Barnstead Road twice like 17 
usual and Chris Brown said with this guy’s figures, he’ll probably be able to do it three times.   18 
 19 
Fire Truck Order 20 
MOTION: “To table this conversation until more highlights are provided.” 21 
 Motion: T. Colby 22 
 Seconded: J. Hadley 23 
 Discussion: Fire Chief, Mark Tetreault said it could end up costing more if we table 24 

this and don’t make a decision soon.  Selectman Frye said he doesn’t know a lot 25 
about fire trucks and thinks that the Fire Chief would know best.  Mark said that 26 
about 8 months ago they formed a truck specification committee to look up 27 
pricing from different vendors.  He said there are 2 bidding consortiums: Houston 28 
Galveston Area Counsel and Coasters from Pennsylvania.  It’s bulk purchasing 29 
bidding so that we can save money as opposed to us bidding on one truck.  He 30 
said currently they’re looking at a fire truck with: 10 wheels, custom cab, 1,500 31 
gallons/minute, holds 3,000 gallons of water, has a foam tank, custom truck, 32 
back is stainless steel which is guaranteed for 30 years, tank if life guaranteed, 33 
10-year paint warrantee, 5 year pump warrantee.  Core guys from Pennsylvania 34 
is where the truck they’re requesting quote is from.  He said he called a number 35 
of different fire stations that have the truck and it’s highly recommended.  Granite 36 
State Fire Apparatus is the distributor that we’re using.  He said it’s a 25-year 37 
truck and the committee did a great job of researching.  He said it’s a lower quote 38 
than was budgeted in the warrant.  Selectman Kreider would need to see the 39 
leasing terms before voting.  Mark said due to COVID-19 it will take 400-450 40 
days to get the truck.  He’s not sure if they review leasing before the truck is built 41 
or after.  He will look into that.  He said the truck will fit into Narrow Station.  The 42 
committee was comprised of: Adam Schaub, Jon Boudreau, Richard Bilodeau, 43 
Jeff Gibson, Mike Corson, and Daryl Morales. 44 

 Motion to Table Passes: 4 – Yes, 1 – No (Matt Frye) 45 
 46 
Ambulance Order 47 
Mark said we’ll have to wait on the ambulance too because the committee recommended, we 48 
get a Ram 5500 chassis with the gasoline engine.  The distributor said if we go the gasoline 49 
route then it’s going to be about 5 months before we even see the chassis.  They do have a 50 
diesel Ram 5500 on the lot that he’s getting a quote for.  He will get the information to the BOS. 51 
 52 
 53 



DRAFT 

 

Board of Selectmen Meeting Minutes  

DRAFT April 14, 2020 Page 6 of 8 

COMMITTEE REPORTS: 1 
 2 
Committee Process Proposal 3 
 4 
Budget/Finance 5 
Selectman Hadley said the Budget Committee is trying to meet for May 20, because Chair 6 
Ginger said they have 17 people so they’d need to meet at the Town Hall.  It was discussed that 7 
Zoom can hold 49 people so they can Zoom if the Governor’s order of no gathering of more 8 
than 10 people isn’t dropped by then.  He said that Katherine gave the end of March 9 
Expenditure Report so he thinks that will be sufficient to give to the Budget Committee.   10 
Selectman Hadley said the BOS didn’t use any of the fund balance last year when they set the 11 
tax rate.  According to DRA we have $1,417,000 in surplus and that doesn’t include anything 12 
that we might have from 2019.  Governor’s order #23 is allowing municipalities to fund 13 
expenditures if needed from their fund balance with approval from DRA.  He said town’s with 14 
populations greater than 500,000 will get care funding first.  But since NH doesn’t have any 15 
cities or towns over 500,000 local governments won’t get any money on the first round.  16 
Selectman Frye said he has a call tomorrow with the Senator about resources available to local 17 
municipalities related to COVID-19 expenditures and recovery.  T.A. Thibodeau said she will 18 
also have updates on recovery on Friday.   19 
 20 
Town Owned Properties 21 
Selectman Hadley said he told our Assessor that he’s not appointed to the committee but we’re 22 
going to use him as a resource.  He said he got a list from Linda from the Town Report and 23 
Winnie Young has looked at conservation property.  He thinks the committee should do some 24 
internal work and come out with recommendations.   25 
 26 
Lien Notice Implementation  27 
Selectman Hadley said he thought the governor said to waive interest and penalties during 28 
COVID-19.  Chairman Kreider said that Savannah our Town Clerk/Tax Collector thinks we 29 
should move forward with the notice because it protects the Town.  He said her thinking is to get 30 
them out because these were relevant even before COVID-19, and the BOS can make 31 
decisions on the interest and penalties after the notices are out.  32 
MOTION: “To implement the Certified Tax Lien Notices.” 33 
 Motion: B. Boudreau 34 
 Seconded: M. Frye 35 
 Discussion: Chairman Kreider said this will cost less than $5,000 and it’s standard so 36 

we can’t link this to COVID-19, but we might be able to if we relent on the interest 37 
and penalties.  We might be able to recoup those.  Selectman Frye wanted to 38 
confirm that Savannah is within the order that Bob Young had mentioned about 39 
liens.  Chairman Kreider said in his understanding from Savannah this is the next 40 
step in the regular process which preserves our rights both ways.   41 

 Motion Passes: 5 – Yes, 0 – No  42 
 43 
Town Administrator’s Report 44 

a. COVID-19 Adjustments: Office/Mail Schedule, DocuSign, Building Inspections, 45 
Other 46 

T.A. Thibodeau said we’re working well as a team.  People are asking about COVID information 47 
and we’re trying to give all the information we have and not to spread the disease.  We have a 48 
meeting tomorrow about DocuSign.  Selectman Frye asked if we’re having issues with what 49 
we’re doing so far.  Chairman Kreider thinks it’s working okay, but he thinks it is cumbersome 50 
with time and there are certain prompts and reminders needed to sign things, but he thinks 51 
that’ll happen even with DocuSign.  Katherine said it’s working okay but it’s lots of extra work to 52 
send all the documents and challenging to get everything scanned.  She said all the timesheets 53 



DRAFT 

 

Board of Selectmen Meeting Minutes  

DRAFT April 14, 2020 Page 7 of 8 

got approved with a printed email approval, but not everything was able to be scanned.  T.A. 1 
Thibodeau said DocuSign should cost $149 for the year and we may need 2 packages.  2 
Chairman Kreider would like the schedule published still, so he can see who’s there.  T.A. 3 
Thibodeau said the mail is going out daily from either the Town Hall, the Post Office, and other 4 
mail boxes too.  We’re protecting staff by date stamping mail and opening a few days later as 5 
advised.  She said sometimes Greg mails things that he has to mail, but the Town Clerk/Tax 6 
Collector mails what she needs mailed.  Some of the board questioned Greg getting paid 7 
$90/hour to mail the mail.  T.A. Thibodeau clarified that Glen is from MRI and helps us with AP 8 
and getting caught up on daily duties and Greg is a CPA helping reconcile 2019.  Glen makes 9 
$85/hour.  Chairman Kreider said he thinks we’ll need Greg for a few more months and Glen for 10 
only a little while longer.  Selectman Colby questioned how far in the whole we were before 11 
hiring these two?  Chairman Kreider said that Betty left abruptly and its protocol to bring 12 
consultants in to make sure that everything is reconciled and assessed.   13 
 14 

b. Employee Performance Reviews: Schedule 15 
T.A. Thibodeau said department heads will be doing their own employee performance reviews.  16 
She said we usually get them done by the 4th of July, but her goal is to have them done by June 17 
30th.   18 
 19 
Citizen’s Forum: None 20 
 21 
Non-public pursuant to RSA 91-A: 3, II (a- personnel, c- reputation) 22 
 23 
MOTION: “To enter into non-public session under RSA 91-A: 3, II (a and c) at 8:02 pm.”  24 
 Motion:  J. Hadley 25 
 Seconded:  M. Frye 26 
 Discussion: None 27 

Roll Call:  Jim Hadley – Yes, Tim Colby – Yes, Matt Frye – Yes, Beth Boudreau – 28 
Yes, Hal Kreider – Yes  29 

 30 
MOTION: “To exit non-public session at 8:39 pm.”  31 
 Motion:  T. Colby 32 
 Seconded:  M. Frye 33 

Roll Call: Jim Hadley – Yes, Tim Colby – Yes, Matt Frye – Yes, Beth Boudreau – 34 
Yes, Hal Kreider – Yes  35 

 36 
MOTION: “To make the Health Officer a stipend position at $2,000 a year.” 37 
 Motion: M. Frye 38 
 Seconded: T. Colby 39 
 Discussion: None 40 
 Motion Passes: 5- Yes, 0 – No  41 
 42 
MOTION: “To recommend Jacqueline Lambert to DHHS as the Northwood Health 43 
Officer.” 44 
 Motion: M. Frye 45 
 Seconded: T. Colby 46 
 Discussion: None 47 
 Motion Passes: 4 – Yes, 1 – No (Jim Hadley) 48 
 49 
MOTION: “To enter into non-public session under RSA 91-A: 3, II (a and c) at 8:43 pm.”  50 
 Motion:  T. Colby 51 
 Seconded:  M. Frye 52 
 Discussion: None 53 



DRAFT 

 

Board of Selectmen Meeting Minutes  

DRAFT April 14, 2020 Page 8 of 8 

Roll Call:  Jim Hadley – Yes, Tim Colby – Yes, Matt Frye – Yes, Beth Boudreau – 1 
Yes, Hal Kreider – Yes  2 

 3 
MOTION: “To exit non-public session at 10:45 pm.”  4 
 Motion:  J. Hadley 5 
 Seconded:  M. Frye 6 

Roll Call: Jim Hadley – Yes, Tim Colby – Yes, Matt Frye – Yes, Beth Boudreau – 7 
Yes, Hal Kreider – Yes  8 

 9 
MOTION: “To seal the non-public minutes of April 14, 2020 indefinitely under RSA 91-A: 10 
3, II (a and c).”  11 
 Motion:  M. Frye 12 
 Seconded:  J. Hadley 13 

Discussion:  Chairman Kreider said the board discussed personnel issues. 14 
 Motion Passes: 5 – Yes, 0 – No 15 
 16 
MOTION: “To adjourn at 10:49 pm.”  17 
 Motion:  M. Frye 18 
 Seconded:  J. Hadley 19 

Discussion:  None 20 
 Motion Passes: 5 – Yes, 0 – No 21 
 22 
Respectfully submitted, 23 
 24 
Lisa Lamarche 25 
Municipal Administrative Assistant 26 


